

Schedule 12 – Responsible Procurement

CHANGE HISTORY

Version	Description	Author	Document Number
5.0	Execution version	TfL	75252586.8

Contents

Part /	A - Strategic Labour Needs and Training	4
1	General	4
2	Initial SLNT Plan	4
3	Approval of the Agreed SLNT Plan and the SLNT Implementation Plan	4
4	Updates to the Agreed SLNT Plan and the SLNT Implementation Plan	5
5	Key Sub-contractors	5
6	SLNT Co-ordinator	5
7	Monitoring and Reporting	6
8	SLNT Infractions	6
Anne	x 1 of Part A - Skills and Employment Strategy	7
Anne	x 2 of Part A - Initial SLNT Plan	8
Anne	x 3 of Part A - Format of the SLNT Implementation Plan	9
Anne	x 4 of Part A - Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report Template	11
Part I	3 - Ethical Sourcing	14
1	Ethical Sourcing	14
2	Ethical Sourcing Action Plan	14
Part (C - Equality Diversity & Inclusion (EDI)	15
1	EDI Action Plan	15
2	Monitoring and Reporting	15
Anne	x 1 of Part C - EDI Action Plan Guidance	17

Part A - Strategic Labour Needs and Training

1 General

- 1.1 Without prejudice to the other provisions in this Agreement relating to the Concessionaire Personnel, Part A of this Schedule sets out the Concessionaire's obligations in respect of:
 - (a) supporting the TfL Group (and third parties nominated by the TfL Group) in the implementation of the Skills and Employment Strategy; and
 - (b) ensuring that the Concessionaire attracts, develops and retains the Concessionaire Personnel with the skills necessary to deliver the Services throughout the Term.

2 Initial SLNT Plan

2.1 The Concessionaire shall comply with the provisions of the Initial SLNT Plan from the Effective Date.

3 Approval of the Agreed SLNT Plan and the SLNT Implementation Plan

- 3.1 Within eighty (80) Working Days of the Effective Date, the Concessionaire shall submit a revised copy of the Initial SLNT Plan to TTL for approval.
- 3.2 The Concessionaire shall ensure that the revised copy of the Initial SLNT Plan:
 - (a) is based on the Initial SLNT Plan; and
 - (b) reflects the comments and requirements of TTL provided to the Concessionaire prior to the Effective Date.
- 3.3 Within one hundred (100) Working Days of the Effective Date, the Concessionaire shall submit a draft SLNT Implementation Plan to TTL for approval.
- 3.4 If TTL approves the revised Initial SLNT Plan then from the date of TTL's notice of approval:
 - (a) it shall replace the Initial SLNT Plan and become the Agreed SLNT Plan; and
 - (b) the Concessionaire shall comply with the Agreed SLNT Plan.
- 3.5 If TTL approves the draft SLNT Implementation Plan, the Concessionaire shall comply with the SLNT Implementation Plan from the date of TTL's notice of approval.
- 3.6 If TTL does not approve the revised Initial SLNT Plan or the draft SLNT Implementation Plan (as applicable), the Concessionaire shall amend the revised Initial SLNT Plan or the draft SLNT Implementation Plan (as applicable) and re-submit it to TTL for approval within the time period agreed in writing between the Parties.
- 3.7 If TTL does not approve the Initial SLNT Plan or the draft SLNT Implementation Plan (as applicable) following its resubmission in accordance with Paragraph 3.6 above, the matters

preventing such approval shall be resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure.

4 Updates to the Agreed SLNT Plan and the SLNT Implementation Plan

- 4.1 Without limiting any other provision of this Agreement, the Concessionaire shall at no additional cost to TTL and subject to the provisions of Paragraph 4.2 below, review and amend the Agreed SLNT Plan and SLNT Implementation Plan every Contract Year or at other times requested by TTL, to reflect:
 - (a) Good Industry Practice;
 - (b) any changes to the nature of the Services or TTL Assets; and
 - (c) any amendments proposed by TTL.
- 4.2 Any changes or amendments to the Agreed SLNT Plan or the SLNT Implementation Plan (as applicable) shall be subject to TTL approval and shall not be implemented until approved in writing by TTL. The provisions of Paragraphs 3.6 and 3.7 shall apply to any amended Agreed SLNT Plan or the SLNT Implementation Plan pursuant to Paragraph 4.1.

5 Key Sub-contractors

5.1 The Concessionaire shall procure that its Key Sub-contractors shall provide such co-operation and assistance as may be reasonably requested by the Concessionaire to enable the Concessionaire to comply with the provisions of Part A of this Schedule.

6 SLNT Co-ordinator

- 6.1 Within twenty (20) Working Days of the Effective Date, the Concessionaire shall nominate a member of Concessionaire Personnel with the necessary skills and authority to:
 - (a) be responsible for the implementation and on-going development and maintenance of:
 - (i) the Initial SLNT Plan or the Agreed SLNT Plan (as applicable); and
 - (ii) the SLNT Implementation Plan;

(together the "SLNT Plans");

- (b) act as the single point of contact for TTL Personnel on all matters concerning the SLNT Plans;
- (c) ensure the Concessionaire's compliance with the requirements of Part A of this Schedule;
- (d) monitor and manage Key Sub-contractor compliance with the SLNT Plans; and
- (e) collect, prepare and present monitoring information, including the Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report,

(the "SLNT Co-ordinator").

6.2 The SLNT Co-ordinator shall be the person named as such in Schedule 9.2 (Key Personnel).

7 Monitoring and Reporting

- 7.1 Subject to Paragraph 8 below, the Concessionaire shall provide TTL with a Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report within ten (10) Working Days of each Quarter end date. The Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report shall detail the Concessionaire's performance against the SLNT Plans.
- 7.2 The Concessionaire shall ensure at all times that it complies with Clause 24 (Protection of Personal Data) in the:
 - (a) development and maintenance of the SLNT Plans; and
 - (b) collection and reporting of the information to TTL pursuant to Paragraph 7.1 above.

8 SLNT Infractions

- 8.1 The Concessionaire's failure to:
 - (a) provide TTL with a copy of the Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report within the timescales set out in Paragraph 7.1 above;
 - (b) ensure that each SLNT Output for the monitoring period is delivered in accordance with Agreed SLNT Plan; and/or
 - (c) review and amend the SLNT Plans in accordance with Paragraph 4,

shall constitute a failure to comply with Part A of this Schedule.

8.2 Following any failure referred to in Paragraph 8.1, the Concessionaire's Chief Executive (or equivalent grade) shall attend a meeting with TTL to explain the reasons for such failure and agree a plan to rectify the failure.

Annex 1 of Part A - Skills and Employment Strategy

A copy of the "TfL Skills and Employment Strategy" can be obtained from: https://www.tfl.gov.uk/cdn/static/cms/documents/skills-and-employment-strategy.pdf

A copy of the "Transport Infrastructure Skills Strategy" can be obtained from: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/49</u> <u>5900/transport-infrastructure-strategy-building-sustainable-skills.pdf</u>

A copy of the "Transport Infrastructure Skills Strategy (TISS) – One Year On" can be obtained from: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/627255/strategic-transport-apprenticeship-taskforce-1-yr-on.pdf</u>

A copy of the "Transport Infrastructure Skills Strategy (TISS) – Two Years On" can be obtained from: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/72</u> <u>7052/transport-infrastructure-skills-strategy-two-years-on.pdf</u>

Annex 2 of Part A - Initial SLNT Plan

Organisation	BALC	ommun	ications			÷																	1		
TfL Contract / Project	TCP	ommun	loations																						
Date	Mar-2	1																							
SLNT Activity Area	Priorit y Outpu	Jeat 1	Jear 2	70013	Teata	Lears	reato	7ear 1	reato	7ear 9	103,10	10ar 77	10a1 12	10a, 13	76911A	7081 15	769, 16	Lear 1	1091 10	7691 19	763120	Total	Cross SLNT Value	Check SLNT Totals	Additional Detail / Information
Apprentices (monitoring data to be pr	ovided o	n Shee	t 1)		•		•		•	•		•			•						•	•			
New Entrant - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1	10	1	10	this is our mimimum commitment
New Entrant - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2	20	1.5	30	
Social Mobility - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1	10	1	10	
Social Mobility - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2		2	20	1.5	30	
Exisiting Employee - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y																					0	1	0	this is our mimimum commitment
Exisiting Employee - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y					1			1			1			1			1			1	6	1.5	9	
Apprenticeship Success (monitoring	data to b	e provi	ided on	Sheet	2)																-				
Completion (FTE)					3		3	1	3		4		3	1	3		4		3	1		29	1	29	estimated 50 % completion rate - to disc with SST to understand their success ra
Job Creation (monitoring data for place	cements	to be p	rovidea	d on Sh	eet 2)																				
Social Mobility (FTE)			1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1		1	10	1	10	this is our minimum commitment
Job Creation (monitoring data to be p	rovided	on She	et 2)																						
Targeted Placement Position (Days)			10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	190	10	19	1 paid placement for 10 days as a minim
Placement Positions (Days)			10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	10	190	20	9.5	1 paid placement for 10 days as a minim
Educational Engagement (Days)		5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	100	20	5	We will reconnect with our education part as government COVID-19 restrictions ea and our plans will be finalised to comme by the new school year 2021/2022. Sho earlier opportunities present themselves will engage earlier
																						Total			
																							ivity	161.5	
																						Pric	ority		

Annex 3 of Part A - Format of the SLNT Implementation Plan

1.1 In the format of the SLNT Implementation Plan below, all references to "TfL" are references to TTL.

1 Cont	tact Infor	mation													
TfLCo	ontract					[°]				SLNT C	oordin	ator		,	
Suppli	ier Name									Curren	t Phone	Numb	er		
Contra	act Mana	ger								Contac	t E mail				
TfL St	akeholde	r/SRM								Plan Pe	eriod				
Repor	ting Req	uirements													
Suppli	ier S kills	Manager								Plan Re	eview D	ate			
2 Over	rview and	Backgrou	nd												
2.1 Ov	erview: F	lease prov	vide an ove	eriew of the	e contract/	project to	which the	SLNT re	quireme	ents hav	e been a	applied			
										1		1			
						-									
2.2 Me	ethod: Ple	ase outlin	e now you	will delive	r your SLN	requiren	nents with	particulai	focus	on ITL p	oriority c	outputs			

				Apprentice	es			Job Creation	Educ	ational / Career	Support
	Job : (F1		Worł (F	dess Œ)	Existing Starr (FTE) Completion			Social Mobility (FTE)	Targeted Placement (Days)	Placement (Days)	Educationa Engagemen (Days)
	Level 2 - 3	Level 4+	Level 2 - 3	Level 4+	Level 2 - 3	Level 4+					
Previous Year											
lune											
July											
August											1
September											
October											
November											
December											
January											
ebruary			1								
/larch			1								
April											
May											
lune											
Annual Total	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Future Years											
2.4 - Mileston	es Please r	letail kev m	ilestones rel:	ated to the c	elivery of you	ur SLNT out	nuts				-
Ailestone 1	6.3. 1 10000 0	iotaii itoy iii					Milestone 6				
Ailestone 2							Milestone 7				<u> </u>
Ailestone 3							Milestone 8				
Ailestone 4							Milestone 9				
Milestone 5			1				Milestone 10)			
D. D. min	Disease dat	- 11					T dellar av (Or		0		
Partner 1	: Please det	all any partr	her organisat	ons that will	l assist you	IN YOUR SLIN	Partner 6	ganisation and K	ey Contact)		
Partner 1 Partner 2							Partner 6 Partner 7				
Partner 2 Partner 3							Partner 7 Partner 8				
Partner 3 Partner 4							Partner 8 Partner 9				
Partner 4 Partner 5							Partner 9 Partner 10				
annor J							r anner 10				

J. KISKS. 1 104.	se detail any lisks and associated mitigation measures for the delivery of	Si your OEINT requirements
	Risk	Likelihood
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
4. Communic	ations: Please outline any planned SLNT communication, events or publi	plications (internal and external) and how TfL will be notified

5. Monitoring: You ar	e required to co	mplete the th	nree monitori	ng template	s attached to	o this docume	nt (Sheet 1,2 &	3 of this docu	ment)	
1. SLNT Monitoring	Form - Outlines	SLNT Output	uts for each	reporting per	iod					
2. Job Start/Engage	ment Monitorii	ng Form								
3. Apprentice Monit	oring Form	-								
6. Sign Off:										
Suppliers SLNT Co-ord	linator (Name)								Date	
TfL Supplier Skills Mar	nager (Name)								Date	
Implementation Plan R	leview Date									

Annex 4 of Part A - Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report Template

In the Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report Template below, all references to "TfL" are references to TTL.

SLNT Reporting Table								
						-		
Organisation								
TfL Contract / Project Date								
SLNT Reporiting Period (Quarter)								
OLIVI Reporting Ferrod (Quarter)								
S L NT Activity Area	Prioity	Annual	Annual	Outputs this	Outputs to	Cross C		Additional Detail / Information
	Output	Target	Forecast	Period	date	SLNT Value	SLNT	
Apprentices (monitoring data to be provided)	1	et 3)	1	-	1			
New Entrant - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y					1	0	
New Entrant - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y					1.5	0	
Social Mobility - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y					1	0	
Social Mobility - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y					1.5	0	
Exisiting Employee - Level 2-3 (FTE)	Y					1	0	
Exisiting Employee - Level 4+ (FTE)	Y	l				1.5	0	
Apprenticeship Success (monitoring da	ta to be pro	vided on Si	neet2)		1			
Completion (FTE)		.,,				1	0	
Job Creation (monitoring data for placen	ients to be	provided or	n Sheet 2)	-		-		
Social Mobility (FTE)						1	0	
Job Creation (monitoring data to be prov	ided on Sh	eet2)	1	-				
Targeted Placement Position (Days)						10	0	
Placement Positions (Days)						20	0	
Educational Engagement (Days)						20	0	
						IT Activity	0	
					Priority	Activities	0	
Highlights: Please provide further inform delivered, key partners/organisations that								a summary of the apprenticeships/job starts
denvered, key partiers/organisations that	you nave e	ingaged wit	1, 30110013/0			iu placemei	no oncret	
Issues / Concerns / Risks: Please highl	ight any iss	ues that ha	ve impacte	d your SLN	T delivery.			

Monitoring Forms

(To be completed and submitted with the Quarterly SLNT Monitoring Report)

Part 1 - SLNT Outputs (Excluding Apprentices)

e found on S heet 4: F	Help & Guidance Financial Year 2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list	P eriod to	pprentice outputs which s E mail: Note: F inancial periods		Sheet 3 'App	rentice Monitoring'						
e found on S heet 4: F	Help & Guidance Financial Year 2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	Period from S LNT Output Type S elect from list	P eriod to	E mail: Note: Financial periods	run from April-March								
E mployer name	Financial Year 2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list		Note: Financial periods									
E mployer name	2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list		Note: Financial periods									
E mployer name	2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list		Note: Financial periods									
E mployer name	2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list											
E mployer name	2018-19 S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	S LNT Output Type S elect from list											
E mployer name	S upplier Tier in S upply C hain. S elect from list	from list	S tart Date										
Employer name	Chain. S elect from list	from list	S tart Date	J ob T itle	Duration (for								
Employer name	Chain. S elect from list	from list	S tart Date	J ob T itle	Duration (for								
Employer name	Chain. S elect from list	from list	S tart Date	J ob T itle		Workless		Gender		C riminal	Month and	Home postcode of apprentice (first	Unique identifier (se
					placement outputs)	Yes/No	E thnicity S elect from list	Select	Yes/No			section only e.g.	calculating field)
l Repair Ltd	Tier 1 - Direct S upplier	Taracted Diacoment Desition			placement outputs)	res/ino		from list	res/ino	on Yes/No	rear of Birth	CB12)	calculating lield)
Repair Ltd	Tier 1 - Direct S upplier										1 1000		
		r urgeteu Plucement POSItion	01/04/2018	Engineering Placement	10 days	Yes	Mixed / Multiple ethnic groups	Female	No	No	Jan 1970		CB1201-01-70
													00-01-00 00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00
													00-01-00 00-01-00
					Image: second	Image: section of the section of t	Image: section of the section of th	Image: section of the section of th	Image: section of the section of th	Image: section of the section of th	Image: sector of the sector	Image: sector of the sector	Image: space s

Part 2 - SLNT Outputs – Apprentices

Apprenticeships	data collection form															
	Apprentices hip on a contract p	lease add an additional lir	e to reflect this	- see example h	alow											
	tion can be found on S heet 4:		ie to reneer uns	See example a												
instructions for complet	uon can be lound on sheet 4:	Help & Guidance														
									1							
C ompleted by:		ï			E mail:				1							
	Financial Year	Period from	P eriod to													
R eporting P eriod	2018-19			Note: Financi	al periods run from April-March											
					Please only select ONE of these optic	ons, either standard or framework										
					Apprentices hips Standard - select from	Apprentices hips Framework - select	Level of							Home postcode		
		S upplier Tier in S upply	S tart date of	Proposed end	following link:	from following link:	Level of	Occupation of apprentices hip (SOC	Workless	D is a bility		E thnic ity Gende			t Completed?	Unique identifier (self
C ontract name	E mployer name	Chain. S elect from list	apprentices his	date of	https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/apprenticeshi	i http://www.afo.sscallance.org/frameworks-	apprentices hip.	code). S elect from list	Yes/No	Yes/No		Select Selec		n		calculating field)
				apprentices hip	p-standards	lbrary/	S elect from list	,,		,	Yes/No	from list from list	of apprentic	C B 12)	,	
Example contract name	Road Repair Ltd	Tier 1 - Direct Supplier	12/08/2016	31/08/2018	Highways maintenance skilled operative		3	2121: Civil Engineers				White Male	Jan 1970	C B 12	No	CB1201-01-70
																00-01-00
					İ.											00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
													-			00-01-00
									-				-	-		00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
	1				İ				1							00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00
			-												1	00-01-00
		_	+						-			<u> </u>		-	+	00-01-00
											1		_			00-01-00 00-01-00
		-		+					-							00-01-00
		-	+	+		1	1	1	+	1	1	1 1	+	+		00-01-00
			-										-			00-01-00
			1	1			1		1	1	1		-		1	00-01-00
							1		1	1	1		1		1	00-01-00
																00-01-00
																00-01-00

Part B - Ethical Sourcing

1 Ethical Sourcing

- 1.1 The Concessionaire acknowledges that TTL and all members of the TfL Group are committed to ensuring that workers employed in its supply chains throughout the world are treated fairly, humanely and equitably.
- 1.2 The Concessionaire agrees that it shall comply with and shall procure that its Key Subcontractors comply with the principles of the Ethical Trading Initiative (ETI) Base Code detailed in http://www.ethicaltrade.org/resources/key-eti-resources/eti-base-code, or an equivalent code of conduct, as updated from time to time (the "**Ethical Sourcing Principles**"), in relation to the provision of the Services.
- 1.3 The Concessionaire shall bear any costs arising from or in connection with any change to the Ethical Sourcing Principles.

2 Ethical Sourcing Action Plan

- 2.1 During the Term, if TTL has reasonable cause to believe that the Concessionaire is not complying with any of the Ethical Sourcing Principles, then TTL will notify the Concessionaire and the Parties shall agree an action plan with appropriate timeframes for compliance by the Concessionaire (the "Action Plan").
- 2.2 The Action Plan shall be agreed by the Parties by no later than ten (10) Working Days from the date of TTL notifying the Concessionaire that remedial action is required pursuant to Paragraph 2.1 or such other period as the Parties may otherwise agree in writing.
- 2.3 The costs of the creation and implementation of the Action Plan will be borne by the Concessionaire.

Part C - Equality Diversity & Inclusion (EDI)

1 EDI Action Plan

- 1.1 The Concessionaire shall within six (6) months of the Effective Date provide to TTL the draft EDI Action Plan for approval.
- 1.2 The Concessionaire shall ensure the draft EDI Action Plan is prepared in accordance with the guidance set out in Annex 1 (EDI Action Plan Guidance) to this Part C.
- 1.3 If TTL approves the draft EDI Action Plan, the Concessionaire shall comply with the EDI Action Plan from the date of TTL's notice of approval and for the duration of the Term.
- 1.4 If TTL does not approve the draft EDI Action Plan, the Concessionaire shall amend the draft EDI Action Plan and re-submit it to TTL for approval within the time period agreed in writing between the Parties.
- 1.5 If TTL does not approve the draft EDI Action Plan following its resubmission in accordance with Paragraph 1.4 above, the matters preventing such approval shall be resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- 1.6 The Concessionaire shall use reasonable endeavours to procure that Key Sub-contractors adopt and implement a strategic equality diversity and inclusion action plan in respect of their respective employees engaged in the performance of the Services which is consistent with the scope of the EDI Action Plan.
- 1.7 The Concessionaire shall, review and amend the EDI Action Plan as requested by TTL from time to time which shall be no more than once per Contract Year.
- 1.8 Any changes or amendments to the EDI Action Plan shall be subject to TTL approval and shall not be implemented until approved in writing by TTL. The provisions of Paragraphs 1.4 and 1.5 shall apply to any amended EDI Action Plan pursuant to Paragraph 1.7.

2 Monitoring and Reporting

- 2.1 The Concessionaire shall provide to TTL by no later than 1 September of each year and in advance of each Annual Strategic Meeting a report on the Concessionaire's performance and compliance with the EDI Action Plan (the "Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Report (EDI)"), including:
 - (a) the performance of the Concessionaire over the past Contract Year in relation to the EDI Action Plan;
 - (b) a breakdown of the proportion of its employees engaged in the performance of the Services and, to the extent reasonably possible, the employees of its Key Sub-

contractors engaged pursuant to the terms of the relevant Key Sub-contracts, who are:

- (i) of non-white British origin or who classify themselves as being non-white British;
- (ii) female;
- (iii) from the local community; and
- (iv) disabled; and
- (c) a breakdown of expenditure consisting of a statement broken down by activity and material type of how the Concessionaire and its Sub-contractors have used and how much has been spent with:
 - (i) Small and Medium Enterprises (SME);
 - (ii) Black Asian and Minority Ethnic Groups (BAME) businesses;
 - (iii) suppliers from other under-represented or protected groups; and
 - (iv) suppliers demonstrating a diverse workforce composition.

Annex 1 of Part C - EDI Action Plan Guidance

1 EDI Action Plan Glossary

1.1 For the purposes of this Annex 1 of Part C, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

Black Asian and Minority Ethnic Groups (BAME)	refers to all ethnic groups who have a common experience of discrimination based on their skin colour or ethnic origin. Individuals may self-identify in different ways but BAME is the collective term used by TTL to describe people who may have this range of experiences;
Disability	as defined by the Equality Act 2010, is a physical or mental impairment that has a 'substantial' and 'long-term' negative effect on a person's ability to do normal daily activities. The social model of disability defines disability as the effect of the barriers, discrimination and disadvantages faced by disabled people, not the impact of their specific impairment;
Diversity	is about recognising, respecting and valuing a wide set of differences and understanding that the opportunities we get are impacted by characteristics beyond those protected by legislation like class, family background, political views, union membership etc.;
Equality	is about recognising and respecting differences, including different needs, to ensure that everyone: can live their lives free from discrimination, knows their rights will be protected, and has what they need to succeed in life. It is about ensuring equality of opportunity by tackling the barriers that some groups face, and making London fairer by narrowing the social and economic divides that separate people. The characteristics protected by equality legislation are age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, ethnicity, pregnancy and maternity, religion and/or belief and sexual orientation;
Fuel Poverty	means households that need to spend more than ten per cent (10%) of their income on fuel to maintain a satisfactory heating regime, as well as meeting their other fuel needs (lighting and appliances, cooking and water heating);
Inclusion	means removing barriers and taking steps to create equality, harness diversity and produce safe, welcoming communities and cultures that encourage innovative and fresh ways of thinking and allow people to speak up, especially to suggest where things could be done better;
Inclusive Design	creates environments which everyone can use to access and benefit from the full range of opportunities available; confidently, independently, with choice and dignity, which avoids separation or segregation and is made up of places and spaces that acknowledge diversity and difference, meeting the needs of everyone in society;
Minority-led businesses	are businesses where over fifty-one per cent (51%) of the senior management team or its owners are from a minority ethnic community;
Pay gap	is the difference between the average pay of two different groups of people, for example men and women, or groups from different ethnic backgrounds;
Supplier Diversity	for the purposes of TTL's supplier diversity programme, diverse suppliers are from one of the following five (5) categories:

1.	Sm	all and	Medium	Enterp	prises (SMEs).	
	a)				a business which has both zero (0) forty- ivalent employees and either;	
			(i)	millio poun sevei	ver per annum of no more than £5.6 n (five million six hundred thousand ds sterling) net (or £6.72 million (six millio n hundred twenty thousand pounds ng) gross) in the last financial year; or	on
			(ii)	(two sterli	nce sheet total of no more than £2.8 millio million eight hundred thousand pounds ng) net (£3.36 million (three million three red sixty thousand pounds sterling) gross	
	b)				is a business which has both fifty (50) tw e (249) full-time equivalent employees ar	
			(i)	millio thous (twen thous	ver per annum of no more than £22.8 n (twenty-two million eight hundred sand pounds sterling) net (or £27.36 millio nty-seven million three hundred sixty sand pounds sterling) gross) in the last cial year; or	on
			(ii)	millio poun millio	nce sheet total of no more than £11.4 n (eleven million four hundred thousand ds sterling) net (or £13.68 million (thirteen n six hundred eighty thousand pounds ng) gross).	n
2.	(51 Min clas Brit	%) or m ority eth ssified th ish'. Th	nore owne hnic grou hemselve ne minorit	ed by ips are es as r ty ethr	a business which is fifty-one per cent members of one or more BAME groups. a all people including those who have members of ethnic groups other than 'whi nic classification groups used by TTL for hose taken from the census:	ite
	Et	hnic gro	oup		Racial Origin	
	W	hite Brit	tish		Irish	
					Any other White background	
	Mi	xed			White & Black Caribbean	
					White & Black African	
					White & Asian	
					Any other Mixed background	
	As	sian or A	Asian Brit	tish	Indian	
					Pakistani	

	·			
		Bangladeshi		
		Any other Asian background		
	Black or Black British	Caribbean		
		African		
		Any other Black background		
	Chinese or other	Chinese		
	Ethnic Group	Any other ethnic group		
	cent (51%) or more own	r-represented group which is fifty-one per led by members of one or more of the not covered by previous definitions):		
	a) women;			
	b) disabled people;			
	c) lesbians, gay men, l	pisexual;		
	d) Trans people;			
	e) older people (aged s	sixty (60) or over); or		
	f) younger people (age	ed twenty-four (24) or under).		
	(51%) or more owned by provided by anti-discrim covered by the above (s	ted group is one which is fifty-one per cent y members of a group for which protection is inatory legislation and which is not already such as religious, faith or belief groups or by a social enterprise or a ganisation).		
	with full time equivalent may be from one or more	g a diverse workforce composition are those employees in the supplier's workforce who re minority ethnic groups, and/or under- /or protected groups as listed above; and		
Trans or transgender	is the current terminology for people who do not want to live and be recognised by others as the sex they were assigned at birth. Trans man (someone assigned as female at birth and wants to be accepted as male), trans female (someone assigned male at birth and wants to be accepted as female), gender fluid (someone whose sense of their gender may vary) and gender non-binary (someone who does not wish to be defined as male or female) are some of the experiences that may fall under this umbrella term. The Equality Act 2010 uses the term gender reassignment, in terms of providing protection for discrimination, harassment and victimisation for those who are considering, are currently or plan to reassign their gender.			

2 Guidance for the Concessionaire when preparing the EDI Action Plan

2.1 The EDI Action Plan shall not exceed ten (10) pages in total. Any relevant policies shall be appended.

3 EDI Overview

- 3.1 The Concessionaire is required to provide an overview of their approach to promoting EDI in their workplace.
- 3.2 Please include some contextual information, including reference to the key policies and initiatives to improve EDI in your workplace and any baseline information concerning your employment, delivery and contracting position. This information helps to put the EDI Action Plan in context. Key policy documents such as any EDI policies that the Concessionaire has shall be appended.

4 The EDI Action Plan

- 4.1 This information is provided as a guide as to what the EDI Action Plan shall contain and its contents.
- 4.2 A comprehensive EDI Action Plan will reassure TTL that the following areas have been addressed:
 - (a) the EDI Action Plan shall state the Concessionaire's equality, diversity and inclusion objectives and how the objectives will be achieved over the Term;
 - (b) the EDI Action Plan shall set out the methods by which the Concessionaire proposes to monitor and report on the implementation of its objectives and their effectiveness;
 - (c) that the Concessionaire has a comprehensive policy that covers tackling discrimination, harassment and victimisation on grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation. The policy shall be in line with the Equality Act 2010 (or equivalent requirements in the relevant jurisdiction where the Concessionaire will carry out the works and services) and the codes of practice of the Equality and Human Rights Commission;
 - (d) recruitment policies and procedures ensure that the Concessionaire does not discriminate or create unequal rates of pay between different protected groups, particularly in relation to disability, ethnicity and gender;
 - this includes making sure that the Concessionaire will publicise vacancies to encourage applicants from disadvantaged or underrepresented groups and have measures in place to proactively recruit a diverse workforce including at a senior level;
 - (f) the Concessionaire has demonstrated that it is actively engaging with local employment agencies and local unemployment programmes so that, as vacancies arise in respect of work or services to be carried out under the Agreement, local

people, particularly from groups who are underrepresented in the workforce, are made aware of these opportunities; and

- (g) there are well-defined procedures for creating safe and inclusive workplaces including ways to deal with bullying, harassment and grievances, requests for reasonable adjustments and flexible working and staff assigned to deal with issues of this nature and a robust mechanism for implementation. Additionally, it would be preferable if equality objectives were incorporated into management appraisal mechanisms.
- 4.3 An appropriate plan for training shall form part of the EDI Action Plan and will include the following:
 - (a) detail which staff are to receive training and what the nature of the particular training will be;
 - (b) clear guidance for managers on how to avoid discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
 - (c) clear guidance for managers on how to promote EDI within recruitment, training and appraisal;
 - (d) appropriate training on delivering inclusive products and services is available to all relevant employees; and
 - (e) indicate the types and levels of training, evaluation processes, and how impact will be monitored.
- 4.4 Overall, the EDI Action Plan shall be clear on what it is trying to achieve and what actions will be taken by the Concessionaire to ensure there is continual progress.
- 4.5 The Concessionaire is also required to identify how the EDI Action Plan will continue to be shaped by key stakeholders such as TTL, any members of the TfL Group, the Concessionaire's employees and trade unions.

5 EDI Objectives

5.1 The table below is a suggested template for setting out the EDI objectives and includes some example EDI objectives. The Concessionaire is encouraged to develop their own format to suit their organisation.

EDI objective	Current position/ baseline	Action	Timing	Person responsible	Resources	EDI objectives key performance indicators
Recruit and retain a workforce reflective of the local area	From workforce diversity statistics					
Move all staff onto London						

Living Wage			
Collect and analyses diversity data			
Reduce gender pay gap			
Inclusive recruitment training for hiring managers			
Managing diversity for all line managers/ supervisors			
Inclusive customer service for all public facing staff			

6 List of best practice resources

6.1 The table below lists a number of useful resources across the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion area which may be used to develop the EDI Action Plan.

Mayor's Good Work Standard	https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/business-and- economy/supporting-business/what-mayors-good-work- standard
Equality and Human Rights Commission	https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/good_eq uality_practice_for_employers_equality_policies_equality_trainin g_and_monitoring.pdf
Stonewall	https://www.stonewall.org.uk/creating-inclusive- workplaces/best-practice-toolkits-and-resources
Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development	https://www.cipd.co.uk/knowledge/fundamentals/relations/divers ity
Inclusive Employers	https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/resources
Business in the Community	https://www.bitc.org.uk/campaigns-programmes/employment- diversity/DiversityInclusion
Employers for Carers	https://www.employersforcarers.org/
Disability Rights UK	https://www.disabilityrightsuk.org/